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PREFACE
Reading the history of St. Bernard's, or any Parish can be an as­

dry-as-dust matter if we fail to see it as an account of the high
aspirations of, and the love of God and neighbor burning in the hearts of
a number of individuals, young and old, clergy and laymen, who dream
and do — dream of a buildingin which Christ lives and in which they
may come together to be united in prayer —to thank Him, to ask His
forgiveness, to beg His blessing on their lives, on the -work .of
themselves and their families, their neighbors, and friends.

The men and women who came to the area now known as Belpre,
Catholic or Protestant, their roots in England or Ireland or Germany,
saw to it that they brought Christ with them, in their hearts, and saw to
it, too, that their love of Christ would be made mani_festto all the world
by the wood and brick and mortar, by the days and months of labor and
sweat, which they would put into their demonstration of love and need
in the form of houses of God in the area. To all of them we bow today,
and in particular to those men and women of an earlier day who gave us
St. Bernard's. May we remember them in our prayers, and may God
bless them! ‘

One of those who very early in his life conceived an intense admira­
tion for those who worked and struggled to build homes, lives, and
churches, is David Kearney whose interest has never waned, and part
of whose work is evident in the entire text of this history of St. Ber­
nard’s which he researched and wrote.

Fr. James C. Murphy

David Kearney
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A HISTORY OF
ST. BERNARD’S CHURCH

During the years 1890-1892, services were
conducted by Father Kehrvogel (known as ”Father
Careful”) of Dodge City at Fahey’s farm eight
miles southwest of Belpre. The congregation con­
sisted of eleven families: Andrew Demoraski,
Austin Jennings, John Carrol, John Fahey, John
Biernacki, Henry Wahlmeyer, Bernard Meyer, Pat
Sweeney, David Unzicker, James Cavanaugh, and
Bill Linen. There were 92 services in all.

For four years, from 1892to 1896,no services
were held around Belpre.

From 1896 to 1898, Father J. B. Disselkamp
held services every three months in a sod house 2‘/2
miles south and one mile east of Belpre. The collec­
tion amounting to about $4.00 constituted his
salary. Father Disselkamp, from Windthorst,
covered a wide area of churches in counties sur­
rounding Ford County.

In the fall of 1898, Father Disselkamp was
succeeded by Rev. John splinters, also of
Windthorst, who held services one mile south of
Belpre until October, 1899,when St. Agnes Church,
commonly called the Dublin Church, located
northeast of Belpre, was moved to donated land
iust west of the present Belpre Cemetery.

St. Agnes Church was taken apart in sections
and re-assembled on the southernmost portion of
the new Belpre church site. Rebuilding of the
church was done by Henry Wahlmeyer, John Bier­
nacki, Andrew Demoraski, John Kearney, Thomas
Cavanaugh, Austin Jennings, Gehart Korte, Anton
Elmiger, Bernard Meyer, John Minnrett, Bernard
Muhlenkamp, and August Korte, Doing some of the
carpenter work was David Unzicker.

Although there was some opposition to locating
the church so close to the railroad, the maiority of
the members accepted the donated land when they
discovered the rising prices of lots in the communi­
ty, which some people thought might cost up to
$500. The church cemetery was dedicated in 1898
and located north of the church. That same year
church members placed a fence around the
cemetery.

In the spring of 1900the first Mass was read in
the church by Father Borniger of Windthorst, who
held services once a month on Sunday until the fall.
That year the church was painted, and pews were
installed.

Father Borniger was succeeded by Father
Lenihan who had Mass once a month until Christ­
mas and then Father Deitman of Dodge City held
services until the spring of 1901. Father B.
Schroeder had services periodically in Belpre from
1901until the spring of 1903when he went to Ger­
many. All summer there was no Mass until he
returned in the fall.

John and Mary Kearney.

During the winter of 1903-1904,services were
held by Father J. A. Pompeney of Hutchinson,
Father Frank O'Connor and Father Berk. In
December of 1903Father Pompeney held the first
Catholic lecture in Belpre in the public school. At
that time people were enthusiastic about building a
$3,000church in the future.

The first class to receive Holy Communion was
in 1904as recorded in a newspaper of the area:
”Sunday, June 1,the Catholic church in Belpre was
the scene of unusual solemnity. A class of 12
children received First Holy Communion. During
the previous week they had been under the instruc­
tion of Rev. Frank Connors, and the precision with
which the class moved through the ceremony show­
ed the labor was not in vain.

”At an early hour the little church was packed
to over-flowing. Vehicles of every description
poured in from the surrounding country. They were
mud-covered, and the occupants’ clothes evidenced
long drives and a terrific rain, but their hearts
were centered in the children, and they braved
every difficulty to witness the splendid Communion
ceremony.
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”Many non-Catholics were present and were
loud in their praise of the sermon. There is nothing
more sublime than the Catholic ritual, where con­
ditions permit its fulfillment, and even Belpre, with
its cramped church building, an absence of music,
and all that would tend to make a cathedral
gorgeous, was an evidence of this truth.” '

Those receiving Holy Communion were: Henry
Wahlmeyer, Frank Biernacki, Mary Wahlmeyer,
John Breitenbach, Peter Lunz, William Lunz, John
Meyer, Anna Breitenbach, Catherine Meyer, Mary
Biernacki, Katherine Kearney, and Otilda Korte.
In the second class of 1906were: Bernard Meyer,
Peter Breitenbach, Joseph Biernacki, Adolph

The Bernard Meyer family, I903.

Giessel, Rose Graf, Mary Meyer, and Annie Bier­
nackL

In the fall of 1904Father Disselkamp returned
and held services once a month until the fall of 1905
when his assistant, Father A. B. Hull, began comint
twice a month.

During the fall of 1905,St. Agnes Church was
moved from near the cemetery to the west portion
of the present property. The land was purchased
from James Burk November 14, 1904. Burk had
purchased the property from E. H. McKibben June
24, 1904, and McKibben had purchased the land
only six months before, December 28, 1903, from
the Arkansas Valley Town and Land Company.

:1

Fulher llull.
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Services were held in this church while the new
church was being built.

Construction of the new church was begun in
November of 1905.By late December the founda­
tion was being laid, with the Schull brothers doing
the carpenter work. The main building was 32x 60
feet with a 20-footwing. By mid-January the frame
was up and subscriptions for the $3,000were receiv­
ed. In April the church was plastered and was be­
ing made ready for the dedication.

Dedicated to St. Bernard, it was completed in
Athe spring of 1906. Father Disselkamp, still the

nominal pastor, offered to name the church after
anyone who would donate an extra thousand
dollars. There being no response, it was named
after Father Bernard Disselkamp, Father Austin
Bernard Hull, and Mr. Bernard Meyer who always
took up the collection.

In August a new Seybold organ, donated by
Father Hull, arrived, and in October, the new altar,
candlesticks and three sets of vestments were
received. The first Mass was offered in the new
church by Father Disselkamp November 3, 1906.

Dedication ceremonies were held November
'26, 1906, with Rev. J. Henry Tihen, secretary of
Bishop John J. Hennessy, acting for the bishop who
was ill.

In May of 1907the Sacrament of Confirmation
was administered for the first time in Belpre.
Receiving the sacrament were: Austin Joseph Jen­
nings, Andrew Joseph Demerewski, Joseph
Stanislaus Biernacki, John Joseph Meyer, Frank
Joseph Biernacki, Peter Paul Lunz, William John
Lunz, Peter Aloysius Breitenbach, Bernard
Aloysius Meyer, Adolph Joseph Giessel, John
Joseph Breitenbach, John Miles Kearney, Maria
Caroline Demerewski, Mary Brigit Jennings, Mary
Magdalene Biernacki, Annie Mariea Biernacki,
Rose Petronilla Graf, Mary Agnes McCarthy,
Catherine Annie Graf, Catherine Agnes Meyer,
Mary Agnes Meyer, Katherine Agnes Kearney,
Mary Francis Lunz, Loretta Mary Kearney,
Amelia Margaret Giessel, and Annie Cecelia
Breitenbach,

Father E. M. Coolen became pastor of the
parish in the summer of 1908, replacing Father
Hull. It was under his guidance that the first rec­
tory was built. Until he became the first resident
pastor in early 1909,he held Mass twice a month.

In November 1909,a first Mission was given by
Father Klein. During the week-long mission, he <-rI'1(D

would give his sermon in German at the morning ‘
Mass and English in the evening. Beginning in 1908,
First Holy Communion became a yearly event with
Confirmation being administered every three
years.

In mid-October of 1908,parishioners had raised
over $1,300 for construction of a rectory. By
January 1909,Father Coolen was living temporari­
ly in a portion of the John Githens home in Belpre
while the rectory‘-was being built. On January 28-29
a violent storm struck and the walls of the partially
constructed rectory collapsed, tearing up the
material to a considerable extent and crushing the
south wall of the foundation. Work began again and
the rectory was ready for occupancy in the spring.

During the first three years of the new church
building, additions to the interior included: 18
pews, sanctuary light, Sacred Heart and Blessed
Virgin statues, gold chalice, ciborium, crib and two
new sets of vestments. Sacred Heart, Purgatorial
and AFC societies were also formed.

In 1911 while Father Coolen vacationed in
Holland during the spring and summer Father
August P. Heimann said Mass once a month. Upon
his return from the trip, Mass was held every Sun­
day.

The number of families in the parish totaled 28
in 1911,a large increase from the eleven who form­
ed the parish. _

On August 1, 1913, Rev. J. E. Hackenbroich
came to Belpre, replacing Father Coolen.Full-time
services were held during the five years he was
pastor. One of the first parish picnics, held in 1913,
was attended by more than 800,despite inclement
weather. The picnic was held at Colvin Grove and
the highlight of the afternoon was when Belpre beat
Macksville 6 to 3 in a baseball game. Merchants

Father Coolen and friends.



and businessmen in Belpre closed their
businesses in the afternoon and many races and
contests were held. Father Hackenbroich an­
nounced that because of the success of the day, it
would become an annual event.

In February of 1914a box supper was held in
the Catholic Club House. Proceeds amounting to
$51.75went toward buying a fence for the Catholic
cemetery.

Father John J. Faber was the third resident
pastor, being appointed to the Belpre parish July 4,
1918. Regular services were held during the two
years he was pastor.

In September of 1920,Father B. C. Drath was
assigned as the pastor of St. Bernard's Church,
replacing Father Faber.

Father Drath

In November, 1920,church members were be­
ing bothered by smoke from the furnace. At a
meeting it was unanimously decided to give the fur­
nace a thorough overhauling. In early December
the repairs for the furnace arrived and the furnace
was overhauled, eliminating the smoke.

in the summer of 1923,Armory Volleyball was
held, with teams from the four churches in Belpre
participating: Catholic, Christian, Baptist and
Methodist.

The Catholic church served as a community
center for Catholics in the area, but the small
church would, in late 1924,fall victim to fire.

One of the last major services in the church
was Midnight Mass, Christmas Eve. A High Mass
was held by Father Drath, and the choir, under the
direction of Helen Lunz, performed the music. The
Lunz orchestra presented some extra carols at the
Offertory in a Yuletide fashion.

On the day of December 28, 1924,St. Bernard's
Church was discovered engulfed in flames. The
followingwas written by Father Drath: ”The sweet
Christmas airs still floating and our church still
dressed in its beautiful festive attire, disaster
swept down on it, when on last Sunday noon shortly
after morning services closed, the edifice caught
fire from an accidental cause, probably an explo­

sion of gases in the furnace of the church basement,
as it was first discovered that it was thickly filled
with smoke and the whole church too. A general
alarm was given by the Central and although many
citizens turned out and put forth their best efforts to
save the building, their best results proved in vain
and the structure collapsed by 2:00 p.m. and had
dwindled to ashes. The fire caused a total loss of .
about $6,000, which is partially covered by in­
surance.” _ _ A

While the building was totally destroyed, quick
action by local citizens saved much of the furniture
and statues.

On December 29, 1924.the following letter was
received:
Dear Father Drath:

The Bishop regrets very ml» the loss yourself
and parishioners have sustained : the destruction
of your church.

F. J. Morrell, Chancellor
In January 1925, plans were already being

made for a new church. In the meantime, services
were being held in the old Dublin church. A total of
$4,500was received from the insurance company
and this was put in the Church Building Fund.

At first Father Drath thou_ghtthe new church
would be of stucco because of the high cost of
building a brick church. A. E. Blaes, an architect
from Springfield, Mo., was secured to do
preliminary plans for the new structure and the
decision to build a church of brick was made.

The Right Rev. Bishop August Schwertner
visited the parish in March and decided that the new

E

St. Bernard’: Church and rectory, I914.
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curch uld be located in the northwestcorner of
the parish property.

In April l925, the Bishop gave Father Drath
permission to have an addition built to the Dublin
Church because of crowded conditions. During the
Easter season, even though double services were
held, more than a dozen men had to stand outside
the church because of lack of room.

Work was commenced on a 14-footframe addi­
tion for the altar and confessional at a cost of $400.
Permission was granted by the Bishop to hold dou­
ble services every Sunday.

Sketches were made for the new church and
the cost was set for $20,000. The proposed plans
called for the new church to be completely
fireproof.

The extension on the temporary church was
completed in June. In addition to the extension, the
old Dublin Church was remodeled and painted.

During the year i925-26,a large fund drive was
underway to collect funds for the building proiect.

.The first subscription netted $14,090in the parish of
only 33 families. A second collection later brought
in another $2,695.

During the mid 1920's the Lunz choir sang at
most church functions. Despite the building addi­
tion, the little church was still crowded and the pop­
ulation of the parish was growing steadily. By late
1926,there were 44 families in the parish.

in 1926 the ladies of the Altar Society had a
bazaar and dinner in the Commercial Club building

St. Bernard’: parish

plan! in the early 1920:.

Picture of church burning. V
I924



Groundbreaking for present Si. Bernard's Church.

to raise money for the church building fund. The
Commercial Club building was located ap­
proximately where the Schartz Repair shop now
stands. On that same day the Altar Society raffled
off an electric alarm clock and dinner set.

The architects of Brinkman and Hagan were
contracted to make up the final plans and to
superintend the church-building operation. There
was some question about the location of the new
church, with options being near the former church
or facing north toward the public school. It was
finally determined that the best location would be
in the northwest corner of the parish grounds, with
the building facing west.

St. Joseph's Church in Offerle was being con­
structed at the time plans were being made for St.
Bernard's Church. H. W. Brinkman was
superintending the construction at Offerle and
would come to Belpre in 1927to superintend con­
struction.

Bids for the new church were let in March and
the contract was awarded to the Joseph Sebacher
Construction Company. This company was in

charge of building the St. Joseph's Church in
Offerle and their work there was completed in mid­
1927.

Men in the parish began excavation for the
church basement in March and the foundation was
laid in April and May. The cornerstone was laid
May 29, 1927with Bishop Schwertner officiating. A
large group was in attendance at the ceremony.

The building of the new Umbro-Romanesque­
style church began in late June. Following is a
report by Father Drath in the Belpre Bulletin:
”Since our last report by Mr. Arnold, the foreman
in charge of St. Bernard's Church building, both the
east and west gables have been raised above the
part of the roof covered by stone coping and adorn­
ed by a stone cross. The west front, with its porticos
and big circle window, the both side elevations and
front gable with its circle exhibit a sample of
genuine Romanesque church architecture. The
tower with its belfry, also all interior work and
decorations will be executed in exactly the same
style.’’

Stained glass windows, purchased from the
Wichita Art Glass Company, were donated by

laying cornerstone of present Si. Bernard’: Church. I927.
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Present Church soon after completion.

parishioners. By August the tile roof was being
completed and thoughts turned to purchasing fur­
niture for the interior. To complete the interior in
time for dedication in November, it was necessary
to borrow $5,000 from Josephinum Pontifical
College in Columbus, Ohio. The main altar, pulpit,
communion rail, and pews were ordered from the
Sweboda Altar Manufacturing Company of Kewan­
nia, Wisconsin, with the stipulation that the side
altars would be ordered the following year.

St. Bernard's Church was dedicated November
5, 1927by Bishop August J. Schwertner of Wichita.
Following the dedication ceremony, a dinner was
served in the basement of the new church by the
Altar Society. On the same day a bazaar was held
in the old church.

The dedicatory sermon was delivered by
Father O'Brien of Larned and the Right Reverend
Bishop addressed the confirmands and congrega­
tion. He congratulated the pastor and the congrega­

tion on their success in finishing the church. About
500 persons attended.

The following clergy assisted in the
ceremonies: Bishop Schwertner, Very Rev. F. J.
Morrell, Very Rev. V. J. Smith, Rev. J. E. Hacke.n­
broich, celebrant, assisted by Rev. J. J. Faber,
Rev. F. Dembronsky, Rev. J. M. Staab, master of
ceremonies, Rev. A. Zink, Rev. William Paul, Rev.
J. O'Brien, Rev. J. Butler and the pastor, Rev. B.
C. Drath.

The choir, under the direction of Miss Helen
Lunz, rendered the Mass music.

According to Father Drath, the new church
measures 40x 100feet and was built with a spacious
sanctuary and sacristy, mother's room and bap­
tistry. The church proper can seat about 280people,
with another 25 in the choir. When it was built it
was the largest church in Edwards County.

On the church and building committees during
the church construction were Bernard and John
Meyer, John Apel, Miles Kearney, John Breiten­
bach and Peter Breitenbach.

DONATIONS BY PARISHIONERS:

Altar Society . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..$1,300.00 Goins, Forrest . . . . . . . . . . . ..$ 25.00 Lunz, William . . . . . . . . . . . .. 5 100.00
Apels, John . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 900.00 Graf, Joseph . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 50.00 William, Madden . . . . . . . . .. 10.00
Baumann, Mrs. Rose . . . . .. 25.00 Graf, Hugo . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 50.00 Meyers, Bernard . . . . . . . . . .. 1,850.00
Breitenbach, Mrs. Anna 1,502.00 Hammekes, Joseph . . . . . . .. 775.00 Meyers, Andrew . . . . . . . . . .. 325.00
Breitenbachs, John . . . . . . .. 702.00 Huslers, John . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 750.00 Meyers, Paul . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 275.00
Breitenbachs, peter ___, ___ 6oo_oo Judge, Edward . . . . . . . . . . .. 75.00 Meyers, Bernard . . . . . . . . .. 50.00
Breitenbachs, Frank . . , . _,, 455_oo Kearneys, John . . . . . . . . . . .. 587.50 Meyer, John . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 575.00
Budde, Henry _, _, , , , _, ___,_ 7oo,oo Kearneys, Miles . . . . . . . . . .. 475.00 ‘N\'-‘Yer, Catherine . . . . . . . . . .. 134.00
Budde, Otto . . . . . . . . . . . . _, .. 762,50 Kearney, Etta 8. Katherine 125.00 Neidig, August . . . . . . . . . . . .. 250.00
Deveney, Thomas . . . . . . . .. 100.00 Kinkelaars, Henry . . . . . . . . .. 1,480.00 Rileys, Mamie . . . . . . . . . . . .. 10.00
Drath, Rev. B. C . . . . . . . . . .. 650.00 Kirmers, Peter . . . . . . . . . . .. 100.00 Roenbaugh, Nora . , , _, , , . ,, 378.00
Frack, Rose Mrs . . . . . . . . . .. 365.00 Kleins, George . . . . . . . . . . .. 550.00 Scheuflers, Chas . . . . . . . . . .. 550.00
Franks, Wm . . . . . . . . . . .. 150.00 Koll, Nicholas . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 450.00 Skalskys, Gottlieb . . . . . . . .. 350.00
Gales, Mathias . . . . . . . . . . .. 450.00 Koetts, Ferdinand . . . . . . . .. 500.00 Skalsky, Mrs. Matilda 45.00
Gales, peter 3, Leon , . _____ 230,00 Lunz’s, J. E . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 1,775.00 Wendels, John . . . . . . . . . . . .. 250.00
Giesselsl Louis ____. _____H 25o_oo Lunz’s, Elmer . . . . . . . . . . . .. 250.00 Wolf, Mrs. Joe . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 600.00



The new church, built at a cost‘of $33,360, left
the parish with a debt of only $5,000to be paid the
Josephinum Pontifical College in 1932.

With the new church completed and the use of
the basement for religious instruction and social
events, it was decided to raze the Dublin Church. In
early 1928, the building was torn down and the
lumber disposed of.

The debt of $5,000to the Josephinum College
remained. With the Depression in full progress,
parishioners could not make the payments and the
debt remained for much longer than originally an­
ticipated.

To help generate additional funds into the
church treasury, the first parish picnic in over a
decade was held in 1934, under the direction of
Father Drath. The picnic, besides an abundance of
food, had games, drawings and a dance. The pic­
nics continued annually throughout the last half of
the 1930's. .

On July 20, 1935, Father John J. Steines of
Fowler was appointed to St. Bernard's Church,
replacing Father Drath, who had served at Belpre
for almost 15 years. In the fall of 1935 a maior
renovation of the rectory was undertaken and in
1936numerous trees were planted on the parish
grounds.

Father Godfrey Juelich, appointed pastor June
30, 1937,was succeeded by Father Harry Cabell.
During his three-year stay, the dust bowl days now
over, the debt on the church was paid.

The Altar Society was particularly active in the
1940's, holding rummage sales, card parties,
suppers and bingo. Another church organization
which met regularly in the early 1940'swas the St.
Jude Study Club.

In March of 1942, the church grounds were
greatly improved when men of the parish leveled
and sanded the roads on the church property. In ad­
dition, they also set out trees on the church lawn.

improvements to the church property were
made in 1943when sidewalks were run around the
church and from the church to the rectory, a new
furnace installed in the rectory and statues cleaned
and decorated.

Father John J. Steines. Father Godfrey luelich.

Rev. W. L. Birzer was appointed as pastor of
St. Bernard's Church January 1, 1944.While here,
Father Birzer directed a complete redecoration
and repair program for St. Bernard's Church. In
December of 1945 the St. Theresa Little Flower
statue and pedestal was donated by a parishioner.

While Father Birzer was at Belpre, he began
the parish picnics which had not been held since
before World War II. In 1946the picnic was held in
the city park in August. Events included a chicken
dinner at 5:30 p.m., concession stands, drawings
and dancing on an open air platform.

The idea of a parochial school in Belpre had
been considered from tin." earliest days of the
parish but it was deemed . practical because of
the relatively few Catholic c.-Vdren of school age
and because of the cost invo' t. The first step
toward the building of a Cathol. school occurred
when Father Wenzel Birzer appointed a building
committee to consider costs for such a proiect.

Father Vincent J. Smith replaced Father
Birzer in 1948.He worked with committees and laid
some of the groundwork for the first maior con­
struction project of the church in more than 20
years when plans were made to construct a
Catholic school. Members of the Building Fund
Committee were R. F. Graf, Paul Meyer,
Lawrence Koett, Roger Gales, George Klein and
William Schartz. In July of 1949the Oscar Skalsky
home west of the church was secured for the
Sister's convent as the next step in the beginning of
a Catholic school system in Belpre.

Father Smith retired October 6 to Larned and
was replaced by Rev. John B. Vesecky.

Numerous meetings were held during the fall
and winter months to study various building plans
and to figure ways and means of financing the pro­
iect. Upon his appointment to the parish, Father
Vesecky was instructed by Bishop Mark Carroll to
continue with the construction of the school.

In early 1950parishioners did extensive work
on the interior of the new convent, getting it ready
for the day the Sisters would move in when the
school was completed.

Father W. l. Birxer.Father Harry Cabell.
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Parish picture,

Plans for a school and hall costing $59,000were
approved April 25, with Tom Lenahan of Jetmore
as contractor. The men of the parish began hauling
sand, cement, cinder blocks, and brick preparatory
to the actual construction of the structure. Their
time was being kept and this was a savings of $673
to the parish since their earnings were deducted
from the total of the contract.

Actual work by the contractor began May 8
with an excavating machine digging the openings
for the footings of the building. When the walls
were half-way up, a storm came up one afternoon
and toppled the east wall. This caused a delay but
no extra expense since this was covered by in­
surance. The erection of the building progressed
quite smoothly during the spring and summer
months, with plans being made to begin the school
in the fall. During the week of June 18, the Altar
Society sponsored a linen shower for"the Sister's
Convent and all the necessary linens, towels and
bedding were obtained. The annual picnic was held
in July and brought in about $2,000. During the
summer the parish also borrowed $48,000from the
Diocese of Wichita to meet the expenses for the new
schooL
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September 6 marked the opening of school at
St. Bernard's School in Belpre. A total of 27
children were enrolled. They were: Vernon Penka,
eighth grade; LeRoy Schartz, seventh grade;
Edward Hussler, Kay Skalsky, and Betty Penka,
sixth grade; Robert Schartz, Beatrice Warner,
Virginia Skalsky, and Margaret Breitenbach, fifth
grade; Patricia Penka, Janice Hussler, Ellen
Breitenbach, and Paul Skalsky, fourth grade;
Dorinda Breitenbach, Larry John Koett, Larry
Gales, Patricia Breitenbach, Margaret Warner,
and Daniel Schartz, third grade; Larry Penka,
Thelma Skalsky, Jeanette Van Arsdale, second;
and Patricia Schartz, Marilyn Koett, Norman
Leonard, Chris Breitenbach, and Patrick Kearney,
first.

The first Sisters to teach in the school were:
Sister Mary Dalmatia, O. P., primary grades;
Sister Mary Monica, 0. P., upper grades; and
Sister Mary Sophia, 0. P., housekeeper.

The dedication of the school was set for Tues­
day, November 28, by Bishop Mark K. Carroll. The
High Mass of Thanksgiving was sung by the pastor,
Father Vesecky, that morning at 9:15. Immediate­
ly after the Mass the Bishop confirmed 32 children

_ «\»\
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St. Bernard’: School and Parish Hall.
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and adults. After Confirmation, Bishop Carroll
blessed the new school and the Sisters’ convent.

The year 1951was an active one for the parish.
The Knights of Columbus Council of Larned and
Belpre sponsored a father-son banquet in March
and the Altar Society held a mother-daughter ban­
quet in the parish hall, complete with style show, in
April. Sunday, June3 was the first Sunday on which
the parish began having two Masses on Sundays
and holydays. Prior to that time there had been
only one Mass. In July the men of the parish con­
structed a large concrete slab in the Belpre City
Park. The people in the community were asked to
join in and make this a community project and
many did. The concrete area was used for the first
time as a dance pavilion at the parish picnic. The
Belpre City Council passed an ordinance stating
that St. Bernard's Church would have full use of the
concrete slab for all its picnics without in­
terference.

In 1951 the new Diocese of Dodge City was
formed. Bishop John B. Franz was installed
September 12 as the first bishop of the diocese.

The Golden Jubilee of the parish was held
November 7, 1951. The day began with a Solemn
Pontifical Mass at 10:00 a.m., followed by a large
banquet at noon. The afternoon was spent in play­
ing games and renewing old acquaintances and the
evening was spent in dancing. The Mass in the mor­
ning was the first Solemn Pontifical Mass for the
Belpre parish.

Celebrant of the Pontifical Mass was Bishop
John B. Franz, with Msgr. J. J. Steines as assistant
priest; Fathers Godfrey Juelich and Peter Stremel

Dedication of school, 1950.

as deacons of honor; Father Wenzel Birzer,
deacon; Father A. F. Preisner, sub-deacon; Father
William Vogel, book—bearer; Father Herman
Schulte, bugia-bearer; Father Jacob Dreher,
crozier—bearer; Father James Tainter, mitre—
bearer; Father John Zenner, first master of
ceremonies; and Father Leo Kelty, second master
of ceremonies.

At the banquet Father Tainter acted as toast­
master. Father Tainter introduced Ben Meyer,
who represented the people of the parish. N\sgr. J.
J. Steines, former pastor, represented all the
former pastors of the parish and then Bishop Franz
was the principal speaker. Father Vesecky, pastor,
thanked all the persons who helped with the day's
activities.

Father Vincent J. Smith. rmhe, john 3_ Ve,e¢ky_



Golden Anniversary, I951.

In 1953the first basketball team for St. Ber­
nard’s School was organized with Dale Meyer as
coach. Throughout the following years of the school
the basketball program was to be very active and
won a number ot’troph'ie's.

Also in 1953a statue, ”Our Lady of Fatima”
was presented to the primary room in memory of
John Patrick Kearney, who died in September.

In 1956a tradition of 10 years ended when the
annual church picnics were replaced by Monday­
night Bingo games. Throughout the years the pic­
nics raised about $2,000annually for the parish and
the Bingo games were also instrumental in
providing additional revenue to the parish and
quickly reducing the debt.

The extent of the people's generosity in reduc­
ing the debt on the school building was quite signifi­
cant. On December 31, 1951,the debt was $43,339.07,
and within a five year period, December 31,1956,it
was down to $12,294.16. In another two years, 1958,
the parish was free of debt.

Throughout the 1950's the parochial school
maintained an enrollment of approximately 35
students. Students were divided into rooms of

grades 1-4 and grades 5-8, with one teacher per
room. A housekeeper was at the Sister's convent.

By 1958,.the debt on St. Bernard's School and
the assessment to St. Mary of the Plains in Dodge
City being paid in full, the parish began for­
mulating plans for construction of a new rectory.
At this time the building committee consisted of
Henry Kinkelaar, Pete Penka, Lawrence Koett,
Maloy Breitenbach, John Kearney, Ted Skalsky
and Andrew Meyer. Members of the church com­
mittee were John Breitenbach, Ollie Van Arsdale,
Wayne Clowers, and Ed Scheufler. The firm of
Kinkelaar and Kinkelaar of Dodge City was con­
tracted to do the work and plans were made up by
Father Vesecky and the committees. On February
10, 1959,the pastor and housekeeper moved tem­
porarily into the Lunz rental property, after 40men
and women came and moved all the furnishings out
of the rectory. On February 11 demolition of the
rectory was begun by men of the parish. The struc­
ture, 51 years old, was dismantled and much of the
lumber was used in the new rectory.

The site for the rectory was staked out
February 12and the excavating crew moved in the
next day to work on the basement and footings.

The present rectory.
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M591’,A, B, Dfiemiun, Father Gerald Hammeke.

Work progressed through much of the spring and
summer. On August 9, 1959,the rectory was com­
pleted at a cost of $35,491.78.The cost of the struc­
ture was kept down by donations of time and
supplies and through the use of materials from the
old rectory. In September the parish had a sale to
sell surplus lumber, furniture, small buildings and
other items. Money from this sale went to pay off
the debt.

On September 15, 1960,Father Vesecky was ap­
pointed pastor at Pratt and Father A. B. Dziemian
was named the new pastor at Belpre.

In 1962, under the supervision of Sister Mary
Beatrice, two parish functions began that have
since continued —the annual parish turkey supper
and the Sunday morning coffee-and-roll get­
togethers. The turkey suppers gained in reputation
and brought people from a distance each year.

The Second Vatican Council from 1962-65
brought many changes in the liturgy of the Mass,
including the gradual change from Latin to English
and the altar facing the people. The first ’’little
altar” in the church was one that was originally in
the church that burned in 1924.This was replaced
later with the altar and pulpit now in use, which
were donated to the parish.

In the fall of 1965the Belpre-St. John Catholic
School Association was founded and for the first
time Catholic students from St. John parish in St.
John and St. Francis Xavier parish in Seward were
transported by bus to Belpre at St. Bernard's
School. Because of the added students, enrollment
at the school iumped to over 50, a new record. For
the first time, three nuns were instructing the
students and a third classroom, previously known
as the music room, was utilized as an intermediate
room. The presence of a housekeeper made a total
of four Sisters stationed at Belpre, the largest
number in the history of the parish. in 1966a stu­
dent council was formed at the school as was a
monthly newspaper.

Father Dziemian was transferred in the fall of
1965, and Father Gerald Hammeke was named
pastor.

Under the supervision of Father Hammeke, the
Catholic Youth Organization, high school students
who had been meeting for some years, became
more active in church and community functions.

Father Hammeke organized a men's social
group and an Adult Study Club in the parish. Begin­
ning in the mid-1960's a spirit of ecumenism was be­
ing shown, with women's interfaith teas being held
and youth from different religious denominations
meeting together to better understand each other’s
religious beliefs.

In July of 1967the parish council was formed,
which was made up of members of the church com­
mittee, school board and Altar Society. This coun­
cil is still functioning today.

During the 1967-68year, St. Bernard's School
was operating efficiently but various factors that
year cast a shadow on the future of the school. At
this time a shortage of nuns was developing, the
school bus transporting students from St. John was
in a deteriorated condition and the possibility ex­
isted that the public school lunchroom would not
operate after that year.

On March 4, 1968, a school meeting was held
with diocesan officials and it was determined that
the school would be closed at the end of the school
term. An era in the parish came to an end May 20,
1968, when St. Bernard's School officially closed
after being in operation for 18 years.

With the closing of the school, other provisions
had to be made for religious education of the young
people. On June 2, 1968,five women in the parish
were certified as the first Confraternity of Chris­
tian Doctrine teachers. They were Mrs. Greg
Neidig, Mrs. Ollie Van Arsdale, Mrs. Dennis Laber,
Mrs. Ed Scheufler, and Mrs. Norman Wood.
Religion classes, held weekly, began in the fall.
The CCD classes are still being held today with
parishioners as teachers.

Father Rory O'Neill. Fulher James Murphy.
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Apel, Anthony
Berscheidt, Mrs. Helen
Booth, Mrs. Ronald
Boman, Mrs. Clifford
Boman, Mrs. Hildegarde
Breitenbach, Bernard
Breitenbach, Mrs. Elva
Breitenbach, Garman
Breitenbach, John
Breitenbach, Maloy
Breitenbach, Mrs. Martha
Castaneda, Frank

—Chvi|icek,Janice
Chvllicek, Jerry
Chvilicek, John
Clawson, Mrs. Larry
Clowers, Wayne
Davidson, R. G.
Fehrenbacher, Wayne

HOUSHOLDS OF ST. BERNARD’S PARISH. 1976

‘Fisher, Eugene
Freeman, Roy
Gales, Lawrence
Gales, Mrs. Merle
Gales, Robert
Gales, Vincent
Gibson, Dennis
Graf, Mrs. Alta
Grizzell, Mrs. Fritz
Hammeke, David
Hammeke, Joe
Herrenbruck, Galen
Hogan, Mrs. Freddie
Kearney, David
Kearney, John
Kephart, Bill
Keiter, Ed
Keller, Gene
Klein, Mrs. Freda

Koett, John
Koett, Terrence
Meier, Ron
Meyer, Ben
Meyer, Jerry
Meyer, Paul
Miller, Mrs. Harold
Moore, Harvey
Moore, Harvey, Jr.
Neidig, Greg
O'Brien, Frank
Penka, Pete
Penka, Roy
Piland, Mrs. Don
Quintero, Zaragosa
Riegel, Mrs. H. F.
Rues, Al
Sawyer, LeRoy
Schartz, LeRoy

Schartz, Richard
Schartz, Vernon
Scheck, Linus
Scheufler, Ed
Scheufler, Mark
Schnoebelen, Paul
Skalsky, Paul
Skalsky, Ted
Smith, Bruce
Smith, Mrs. Harold
Smith, Mrs. Ralph
Stegman, Elmer
Van Arsdale, Jim
Van Arsdale, Ollie
Waters, Mrs. Donald
Weers, Francis
Welsch, Mrs. Dean
Wood, Norman
Wurm, Joe

ST. BERNARD’S

Seventy-five years ago,
Three quarters of a century
It you will,

When there were but few dwellings
On the plains,
Where there were

No glowing farm lights
Or paved roads
That wound about like velvet ribbons

When life was simple
But not easy,
There were those who paused
To worship Him

Because they were needful
Of His Divine help­
And they were grateful
For their blessings­
And down through all these years,
The spirit of Needfulness
And the spirit of Gratefulness
Have laid their kind hands
On St. Bernard's
And on all those
Who come Home

Through its ever open doors.

From A Friend



In August, 1968, Father Hammeke was
transferred and Father Rory O'Neill assumed the
position as pastor of St. Bernard's Church.

Under the direction of Father O'Neill, the CCD
program was organized in the parish and for
several years nuns were secured to coordinate
religious education events and classes.

The parish no longer needing the sisters’ con­
vent, it was sold at public auction with many other
items December 7, 1968.Mr. and Mrs. Ross Boman
purchased the residence.

During the eight years Father O'Neill was at
Belpre, numerous improvements were made to
parish facilities, including roof repairs to the
church, school and hall as well as painting of the
parish hall and the installation of a ventilator and
new curtains.

In 1973 painting was done to all woodwork on
the exterior of the church and in 1974the refur­
bishing of the interior of the church was under­
taken. Work included repairing imperfection in the
walls, complete painting of the entire church in­

terior, the repainting of the altars and the installa­
tion of new chandeliers.

To help pay for the remodeling, a special fund
was established and donations, many in memory of
Francis Riegel, helped pay almost half of the total
cost of $8,339.76.

In September 1974, Rev. James Murphy was
assigned as pastor of the church, replacing Father
O'Neill. While he has been here, he has made many
improvements and repairs to the church, parish
center and rectory. He, like Father O'Neill, divides
his time between the parish and Larned State
Hospital, where he is Catholic chaplain.

While he has been pastor, St. Bernard's Church
has received several gifts, among them being an in­
tinction set, a hymn board, oil-stock set, a sign in
front of church, an offerings table and flags for the
church.

Since 1974,Father Murphy, with the assistance
of Mrs. Edward Scheufler, Mrs. Edward Keiter
and Mrs. Norman Wood, has organized a CYO
Choir and initiated an adult assistant-at—Mass
program, replacing young servers.

Vernon Penka
Leroy Schartz
Kay Skalsky
Betty Penka
Robert Schartz
Virginia Skalsky
Margaret Breitenbach
Patricia Penka
Ellen Breitenbach
Paul Skalsky
Larry Penka
Thelma Skalsky
Patricia Breitenbach
Larry V. Gales
Larry J. Koett
Daniel J. Schartz
Jean M. Shackelford
Chris Breitenbach
Marilyn Koett

Simon Graf
Anthony Apel

*Frank Meyer
Joseph Graf
Richard Boman

*Joseph Biernacki
Leonard Boman
John Breitenbach
Bernard Breitenbach
Gaylord Davidson
Harold Gales

St. Bernard's Graduates 1950-1968
Glenda Schartz
Leonard Gales
Roy Gene Penka
Elizabeth Gales
Mike Hammeke
Allen Penka
Ted Skalsky
Sharon Riegel
Robert Davidson
Mike Meyer
Elizabeth Boman
Doris Schartz
David Breitenbach
Kenneth Hammeke
Dennis Meyer
Mary K. Kearney
Joyce Gales
Lynette Schartz
Diane Hammeke

Darryl Apel
Patrick Meyer
Ronald J. Gillen
Edward Meyer
-Joyce Penka
Steven Hammeke
Thomas Hammeke
David Kearney
Mark Meyer
Edward Michel
Harvey A. Moore
Mark Scheufler
Steven Clowers
Cathy Hammeke
Ann Marie Meyer
Jacqueline Neidig
Gerald Penka
Diane Platt
Kevin Raven

IN SERVICE TO THEIR COUNTRY

Vincent Gales
James Galloway
LeRoy Hammeke
John Kearney
Bernard Koett
Justin Lunz
Dale Meyer
Paul Bernard Meyer
Dennis Meyer
Kenneth Hammeke
Garman Breitenbach

WOMEN

Regina Kearney

Roy Freeman
Robert Gales
Vernon Penka
Roy Gene Penka

- Larry Penka
Larry Gales

"Bernard Meyer
Charles Scheufler
Linus Scheck
Paul Scheufler
Edward Scheufler

IN SERVICE
Sandra Keiter

Donna Scheufler
Nancy Skalsky
Cathy Stalcup
James Wondra
Rachel Perez
David Hammeke
Terry Koett
Bill Davidson
Theresa Meyer
Connie Penka
George Peintner
Byron Shields
Phyllis Gales
Loren Leiker
Rochelle Apel
Susan Hammeke
Brenda Scheufler
Dale Moore
Joe Hammeke

Mark Scheufler
Paul Skalsky
Eugene Salmans
Lynn Salmans
Duane Boman
Jerome Budde
Norman Wood
Ed Keiter
Wayne Clowers

*Killed in Service
**Died in Service
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Otto, Henry and Theresa Butlde al the first Budde place.
I909

John and Anna Apel, I942.

Mr. and Mrs. Mat! Gales.Mr. and Mrs. Ross Bowman.
I921 I912
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Joseph and Alhuloniu lunz.

oshac in
Harvest-—

Lunz Family

Cookshuclu in Harvest — the lunx family.

Threshing with steam power.



Jake Gales family, l9l8.

Biernucki family, I912.

The Klein lumily.



CONGRATULATIONS
You're always welcome at
f"__""""""""""""'_W13 ~

DOERR’S
. Qt"!-arn.ed

Phone 285-2171 larned. Kansas

A. A. DOERR
MERCANTILE CO.

DOERR IH
FARM EQUIPMENT

DOERR
METAI. PRODUCTS

DOERR
FURNITURE



Muriuin and Anna Breilenbuch with nine of their I0 children in I916.

John and‘Martha Breilenbu I911.

loremn, Kale, Ellen and Miles Kearney, I904.
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Phone 659-2136

MICHAEL 8. VIRGINIA GLEASON, R.P.

Knupp Pharmacy
The Rexall Store

Weshall continue To try to conduct our
store in such a way that when we die, even
our competitors will be sorry.

Phone 285-2216
Larned, Kansas



1

Main Street III Belpre.
I920

\ «as..«»_v.u..»s—-~ I

Skulsky Bros. Hardware.
I909

John Kearney in touring cur.



SEE YOUR LOCAL

NATIONAL
FARMERS UNION

INSURANCE AGENT
FOR

YOUR COMPLETE

INSURANCE NEEDS

0 COOPERATION
O LEGISLATION

0 EDUCATION

LIFE, HEALTH, CROP HAIL, FARMOWNERS,
FIRE, HOMEOWNERS, AUTO INSURANCE

IN PAWNEE COUNTY SEE

STEVE SMITH
OfficePhone 285-6867

BOXI26 Larned, Kansas 67550



,,g;,3 MR.
M. c3/1ax\

KENNETH C. FENW|CK and RALPH DICK, Owners

P.O. Box 356

211 West 4th Ph. 285-3195

Larned, Kansas 67550

316-348-2075
BLANCHE

CLOTHING STORE

A & s REPAIR

ClothingForTheFamily 8‘

Phone 348-4691 Box276

Macksville, Kansas 67557
Macksville, Kansas LlNUSSCHECK,owner



rim coni »unVi)ontugs; mo.

fr--6

23innnn: ....~...
.~»»amw-r.~»m—-w-M-wuv

Firsl Communion Class with Father Iluckenbroith, I915.



“W \»

Father Ted Skulsky and his parents.
I972

“W ....v.w..»<..w.\...»\...mm.,-....,>...\-,.-.«»,,.....m \\s W... _ .,,«,,.‘ M

c. Scheullr §:An}itJ.niIyI611.

C. Scheufler and Mary Spuciel.

Fnlher Dun Schurlz and his parents. I968. l9I2



PAWNEE BEEFBUILDERS,Inc.

Ccmrfierciai Con"r|eFeeders

P.O. Box 134
Phone 285-2145

Harold Koehn, Chairman of the Board

larned, Kansas

Bruce Wilson, Manager

KWIGGIN
51 7 BROADWAY

No

Quality Printing of Everything From Business Cards to Catalogs

%

Congratulations

_a fl“
S P‘ I AT5-2351II DRUG STORE ll

LARNED, KANS.
/)r

SERVICE STATI

MAC
Custom Printing Commercial Printing

Phone

ON - TANKWAGON

KSVILLE

OIL COMPANY

348-2025
Macksvi||e(3(ansas



Weddings, Anniversaries, Receptions,

Luncheons, Buffets,
Club 8. Business Meetings

Private Rooms Available for
Meetings, Parties or Meals

718 FORT LARN
LARNED. KAN

HOURS:
Week Days 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.

Sunday 7:00 a.m. to 8.00 p.m.

I.UCY'S
DIAMOND JUBILEE SUNDRIES

(St. Bernard's Church) Phone3484255
Macksville, Kansas 67557

Congratulations
FROM Mary's Beauty Salon

The Larned
Bgwl Box336

Phone 348-3875
Macksville, Kansas 67557

FRED 8. JEANNINE WILSON



I 175 Morris Rd.

( JOHN DEERE )

“Home Of The Time Machines"

Box 1

Larned, Kansas 67550
KENNETH C. FENWICK, President

Ph. 316-285-2113

Larned Production
Credit Ass’n.

CATTLE 8. CROP LOANS

P.O. Box 67

Larned, Kansas
Phone 285-2193

C%ction
Veditssociation

FRANK BOOTH
SERVICE

USED CARS, TRUCKS 8.
MACHINERY

Phone 348-3805
Macksville, Kansas

RITZMAN
PHARMACY, Inc.

WALTER W. RITZMAN

522 Broadway
Larned, Kansas 67550



The Joseph Skulsky family.
I908

The G. G. Slmlsky family, I912.

c. r. Skulshy and family, 1912.



The Bernard Meyer family.
19 I 5

A double

Andrew and Mary Meyer, 1925. Ben and Mary Meyer
Golden Wedding, I972.



SI. Bernard’: School, I964-65.
Grades I-4

SI. Bermirdfs School, I964-65.
firnrles 5-8

Threshing time.

Famllmr peddler of the urea.



A Kearney reunion.
I 9 I 4

Miles and Viola Kearney, l9l7.

Thomas Gibney and John Kearney.
I919

» .» -~ ¥.$..,“w‘ ..

A Roenbaugh-Gibney-Mayhew family reunion.
l9I4



Interior of lirsl SI. Bernard's Church.

~<"‘«\\$%\wV~»N\\\u«»\\\\‘«%\V‘

aux mwwam ww«mmwuwmw«§\msxm~m»mw««wnm\w\m«».

&

Inlerior of Church, I976.





lydiu Neidig, as a young woman.

Crowning of the May Queen, May ll, I975.

Andrew Demoroski, John, Nora and Joe Minel, l9l3.

Joe “ummeke_ Kate Ilnmmeke.



—Let Inflation Scare You—SettIeForLess
—-GetThe Best

D’ —ItYourself
—-Save ssss

with

AVcO's
Prestige Home Package

Your Plans or Ours

o Quality ,
0 Code Compliance "
o Satisfaction
o Firm Pricing

DELIVEREDTO YOUR FOUNDATION

OR BUILDING SITE.

WRITE or CALL

AVGOWood Products Inc.
Larned Industrial Par

P.'O. Box 107 316-285-6721
LARN ED, KANSAS 67550

Manulacturuu of: Floor Trusses, Roof Trusses. Wall Sections, Prohung
Doors, Apartment and Home Packages.

DEALER INQUIRIES INVITED

MIKE'S
APCO

SERVICE
1006 Broadway
Larned, Kansas

Phone 685-9985

Fast Friendly Service

Tires Batteries
Accessories

IT'S THE CUT THAT COUNTS

AIR CONDITIONED

DOROTHY’S
BEAITTY SHOP

211West 12th Larned, Kansas

PHONE 285-6181

2 EXPERIENCED BEAUTICIANS TO SERVE YOU

gecéu/iL% mortuary
Eox 477 924 MAIN STREET

LARNED, KANSAS 67550
TELEPHONE

AREA CODE (316) 285-2121



SCHMIDTBERGER TIRE
5th and Main

Larned, Kansas 67550
Phone 285-2646

IVIICI-IELIII

PAT TURNER Auto, Farm, Fleet
Manager Tire Service

HEAR N ' S
Larned as

Gram & J:sD'2§.:!:"

11971111191‘ , 659-2671 422 Colony
1nc- Kinsley, Kansas

0 Grain

0 Fertilizer

0 General Merchandise

0 Chemicals

Phone 316/285-3311
P.O. Box 390

Larnecl, Kansas 67550

l’s
1\/[grrs G/gothlng

1{;Ns1;1:Y, IQXNSAS



Wmgi

leoy Schuru
Council. ‘ iPuns|I Conul.

' I976

Commenlulors at Mass. Assistants at Mass.

Jubilee Book odilors.

J,

liturgy Commission.



.....

0
nmIP5UWTemUIKr­ehol0F

Confirmation class,

Kindergarten graduation.
I960

First Communion Class, I949.

! Confirmation Class, I950.



Ward Feed Yard, Inc.
“COMMERCIAL CATTLE FEEDING"

LARNED.

AND

FEEDING FACILITIES

WAYNE H. WARD, PRES.
PHONE316/285-2257

KANSAS67550

COMPLETE
BUYING - SELLING

CHUCK FOWLER. MGR.
YARDPHONE316/285-2184
Res. PHONE316/285-2911

RANK|N’S
MEAT SHOP

COMPLETE CUSTOM BUTCHERING
PROCESSING

HOME CURED HICKORY SMOKED MEATS

Retail 8. Wholesale

East Highway 56
Larned, Kansas

Phone 285-6376

CHINA GLASS GUNS PRIMITIVES

BUY SELL TRADE

OPEN WEEK DAYB B: SUNDAY P.M.

EHNST'S ANTIUUE SHOP 8: MUSEUM
MR. AND Mas. W. H. ERNST

5 BLOCKS WEST OF CAUTION LIGHT ON U.S. HIGHWAY 50

PH.348-3443 MACKSVILLE. KANSAS 67537

The T. M. DEAL LUMBER COMPANY

SWEDE LYON
MANAGER

PHONE 305 MAIN STREET
316-285-2143 LARNED.KANSAS 67550



CVO Choir.



FRAZEEGRAIN COMPANY

GOODYEAR TIRES 8: BATTERIES

ALL BRANDS OF OIL

VICKERS GAS FUEL

Phone 285-3891 tamed, Kansas

LYNDON YEAGE R, Manager

“TheFriendlyStore” PGICICGClothier
_‘ 413 Broadway Larned, Kansaswu\

“Home of Famous Western Brands”
Resistol Hats
Justin Boots

Lee 8. Levi Jeans

LaCrosse Cowboy Overshoes
Key Overalls

Red Wing Work Shoes 8. Boots

3| |_|_’S TOT-TO-TEEN
SHOP

A G SI3Broadway
Larned, KansasLarned, Kansas



CONGRATULATIONS

SCHEUFLER
SUPPLY CO., Inc.

AMERICAN PARTS

Automotive 8. Industrial Parts

117 West 6th

Larnecl, Kansas 67550

D||.|.WYN GRAIN

8: SUPPLY CO.

Hamm & Pool
0Fertilizer

THE REXALL Store 0 Groin

659-2124 Kinsley,Kansas ' Feed

Dillwyn St. John
549-3852

348-2304 549-3441



St. Bernard’: School, grades I, 2, 3, and’ 4, 1958-59.

» v, /,7-‘

St. Bernard’: buskellmll team, 1962.

First plate in tournament.



CONSERVE YOUR ESTATE

Leave an Estate — not a problem. Estate settle­
ment can be expensive. Sooner or later,
someone is going to have to settle your affairs.
Unless you plan ahead, your heirs may face a
serious cash problem in settling your estate.
Taxes and other expenses mount up. The value
of the estate can be decreased significantly.

Why not let me show you —- and your loved
ones — how easy it is to safeguard what you've
worked so hard to accumulate?

KENNETH J. SCHARTZ
505 West Jay Street Lyons,Kansas

Phone (316) 257-3715



"rnv oun BRANDor ssnv/cs"%®jm gang
Macksville, Kansas

FIDEIAInoosn II$ulAOI(Icolrounou

We appreciate your 75 years of
service to the community.

BUNGEg conpommon
GANG GRAIN DIVISION

Macksville, Kansas

Stafford County
Flour Mills Co.

Custom Grinding, Mixing 8: Cleaning
Jobbers and Manufacturers of

FLOUR, GRAIN, FEEDS 8: COAL

Phone 285-3831
Larned, Kansas 67550

STANDARD OIL
BULK & AGENT

Dutch Sawyer

Lewis, Kansas 67552
324-5688



CONGRATULATIONS
From

BREITENBACH
MORTUARY

CATTLE DEALER
Registered 8. Bonded

Va n Arsdale
. Need Cattle? Want to Sell?

Anflq Ue Car _| WillBeGladToHelp­
Melvin E. Johnson

Muse" m Macksville—348-2581

West Edge of Macksville
DON-DO CAFE

Open Weekdays 10 a.m. - 6 p.m.
and Sunday after Church

Open 7 Days A Week
6 a.m. to 2 a.m.

I Macksville, Kansas 67557
Larned, Kansas



MACKSVILLE

MFG., Inc.

Wegeie Scooter Mower

P.O. Box 277
Macksville, Kansas

AS NEAR HOME
AS WE CAN MAKE IT

P|NK|E’S
CAFE 8;
HOTEL

Macksville, Kansas 67557
Phone 348-9015

Van Arsclale
Motor Co.

The deal that fits your pocketbook.
Doing business in this area 31 years
and in Macksville 20 years.

OWNERS

OLLIE & RUTH VAN ARSDALE

Macksville, Kansas 67557

ENGLISH

GRAIN COMPANY

BONDED GRAIN STORAGE

William T. English — R. H. English

Phone 348-3575

Macksville, Kansas



Purislloners, I976.

§m§§‘



FREEMAN
HAY

SERVICE
ROY FREEMAN

Owner

Phone 995-2775

CROSS
ALFALFA

PRODUCTS
KinsIey—Phone659-2154
_|.ewis—PI1one324-5649

ABeIpre—Phone 995-2731
Stafford—Phone 234-5216

‘ JIM ADAIR, owner

BOB’S BARBER

& BEAUTY SHOP

Hair Cuts 8. Styles
WITH OIRWITHOUT APPOINTMENTS

Larned, Kansas

Congratulations
FROM

MYRL’S
PLACE

MYRLAn&HAROLDBERG
Managers

Box 1 1 1

Belpre, Kansas 67519



MANUFACTURING; INC.

LE\X/IS,KANSAS 67552

WORLD'S MOST COMPLETE LINE OF HYDRAULICS

MMIEL
an

HOME OF FAIR FOOD PRICES 8. NATIONALLY
KNOWN BRANDS

Macksville, Kansas

Congratulations
FROM

Larned Airport

PAULNEELAND,Manager

Mrs. Ethel M. Mackey
BOX 1 5 Box 36

Larned, Kansas 67550 MACKSV'“E'K°"‘°‘
Phone 348-3645

Avon Representative



urniturv aunt
INC.

FURNITURE—CARPET—DRAPER|ES

418 Broadway

Larned, Kansas 67550 Ph. (316) 285-3541

HAMPTon's

Jack&Ji|1i w
Er“/Cy |.Urnbe|' & Home (‘soon cEN'rERy_ fi

ImprovementCenter
7 Daysc1Weeka.m.1o

4__‘

2020 N. Broadway 285-2139 %
Larned, Kansas

$ Roper /\/lusicC

OIMUSICALINSTRUMENTS 0 RENTALS
0 ACCESSORIES O SHEET MUSIC

WE APPRECIATE YOUR BUSINESS

518 Broadway Larned, Kansas
BUEFORD T. ROPE R, Owner

Phone316/285-3515



Swslnce 187§S,Sservlng the Pawnee Valley} SInH V Lamed

3

285-31 11

"/f you would not be forgotten as
soon as you are dead, either write
things worth reading or do things
worth writing. "—Ben/'amin
Frank/in.

H HERIS [ CustomWoodworlé
REPAIR ::*;i,*;%:::.*:L:L:L$.:";°*~'*°“

0 FURNITURE REBUILDING AND
REFINISHING

Phone 348-3842Service 8. Sales on
Macksville, KansasLawn Mowers

Chain Saws
Small Engines

DELUXE
BARBER SHOP

North Broadway V.W.HALL

P'O' 3°" 474 Macksville, Kansas
Larned, Kansas 67550





CONGRATULATIONS AND BEST WISHES
TO 51'. BERNARD’S AND THE

PARISHIONERS ON THEIR 75TH
ANNIVERSARY

John Kearney W,
Phone 995-2295

BELPRE KANSAS

It has been CIprivilege to serve the
community the past 29 years,

and to have been Clmember of
the parish my lifetime.



CONGRATULATIONS
To

ST. BERNARDS

On Their 75th Anniversary

This is our 30th year serving the trade area.

Groceries, Gas — Hardware

Davidson & Riegel
BELPRE, KANSAS

1946 1976


